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NAME Burton Tract Map # 52 
DATE 1957 
DEVELOPER Roy W. Burton 
BOUNDARY Alejo Road to the north, Amado Road to the south, east side of Burton Way to the east 

and Sunrise Way to the west 
ARCHITECT  
DEVELOPMENT 
HISTORY 

During the 1950s, residential development in Palm Springs continued to expand eastward 
and southward. Like other locations in Southern California, it was a period in which large 
developers dominated the scene; among them were William Grant, Noel B. Clarke, A. R. 
Simon, George and Robert Alexander, Roy Fey, and Jack Meiselman. However, a series of 
small developers still flourished. Examples included Roy W. Burton’s Burton Tract (1957); 
auto salesman-turned-real estate developer Sam Janis who subdivided Janis’ Hilltop Estates 
(1958); and David M. Benjamin (1894-1987), who developed the El Mirador Park tract 
(1946) and Mountain View Estates (1956). 
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NAME Enchanted Homes Map # 53 
DATE 1957-58 
DEVELOPER Alexander Construction Company 
BOUNDARY Eastern part of Sunset Way, Burton Way, Orchid Tree Lane, Monterey Road, and Farrell 

Drive between Amado Road and Andreas Road, along with a series of cul-de-sacs: Jill 
Circle, Lyn Circle, Leslie Circle, Helena Circle, and the western part of Easmor Circle. 

ARCHITECT Richard R. Leitch 
DEVELOPMENT 
HISTORY 

The Enchanted Homes tract is located within the former Sunmor Estates which the 
Alexanders purchased from Sunmor developer A.R. Simon. It included three phases of 
Alexander development between December 1957 and February 1958. Although sources 
have attributed these homes to Palmer and Krisel,169 the Desert Sun attributes phases 
two and three of this development to Richard R. Leitch (1922-2008)170 Krisel recalls 
designing the preliminary drawings for the homes, but Alexander Company executive 
Joe Dunas later removed him from the project.171 According to Krisel, the project was 
turned over to architect Anton Dalu (who was working in the Palm Springs area at the 
time as documented by the Los Angeles Times). Dalu’s involvement cannot be verified at 
this time. A model home for the development was located at 2866 Livmore Avenue. 

The Enchanted Homes tract featured a single 1,200 square foot, three bedroom/two 
bathroom floor plan with an open kitchen designed by Palmer & Krisel.172 These Mid-
century Modern style post-and-beam homes also featured multiple roof designs (flat, 
shed, butterfly, and low-pitch gable) and exterior materials such as stone and concrete 
block. 

Phase one included the parcels along Andres Road and the four cul-de-sacs plus parcels 
to the east of Easmor Circle and along Farrell Drive north of Andreas Road. Phase two is 
bordered by Amado Road on the north, Andreas Road to the south, Farrell Drive to the 
east and Orchid Tree Lane to the West. Phase three is bordered by Amado Road on the 
north, Andreas Road on the South, Orchid Tree Lane on the east and Sunset Way on 
the west. 

 

  

                                                           
169 James R. Harlan, The Alexanders: A Desert Legacy, Palm Springs Preservation Foundation, 2011, 44. 
170 “Hold Open House for New Enchanted Homes Grouping,” Desert Sun, May 22, 1958, 7. 
171 Email from William Krisel to Chris Menrad, January 2016. 
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NAME Janis’ Hilltop Estates Map # 54 
DATE 1957 
DEVELOPER Sam Janis 
BOUNDARY  
ARCHITECT  
DEVELOPMENT 
HISTORY 

During the 1950s, residential development in Palm Springs continued to expand eastward 
and southward. Like other locations in Southern California, it was a period in which large 
developers dominated the scene; among them were William Grant, Noel B. Clarke, A. R. 
Simon, George and Robert Alexander, Roy Fey, and Jack Meiselman. However, a series of 
small developers still flourished. Examples included Roy W. Burton’s Burton Tract (1957); 
auto salesman-turned-real estate developer Sam Janis who subdivided Janis’ Hilltop Estates 
(1958); and David M. Benjamin (1894-1987), who developed the El Mirador Park tract 
(1946) and Mountain View Estates (1956). 
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NAME Chino Palms Estates Map # 55 
DATE 1958 
DEVELOPER Jack Meiselman 
BOUNDARY Phase I: south of Via Escuela; Phase II: east side of via Miraleste, all of Berne Street, and 

all of Jacques Street. 
ARCHITECT  
DEVELOPMENT 
HISTORY 

In 1958-59, Meiselman embarked on the largest of his developments, Chino Palms 
Estates. This eighty-five parcel development consists of two tangential property areas. The 
first, developed in 1958, is south of Via Escuela. The second, developed in 1959, consists 
of the east side of via Miraleste, all of Berne Street, and all of Jacques Street. The second 
phase is composed of smaller parcels than the first (100 x 100 feet versus 125 x 150 feet 
in phase one). In February of 1959, Meiselman purchased a 10-acre parcel adjacent to the 
second phase of Chino Palms Estates from Julian Smith.173 Thirty additional homes were 
built on this parcel.  

Chino Palms Estates houses were available in 2-bedroom+den or 3 bedroom, 2 bathroom 
plans. Air conditioning was featured as a key selling point. Model homes for the 
development included 1820 N. Via Miraleste, 1830 N. Via Miraleste, and 2295 N. Via 
Miraleste. 

 

  

                                                           
173 “Meiselman Plan 30 New Homes,” Desert Sun, February 12, 1959. 
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NAME Palm Springs Golf Club Map # 56 
DATE 1958 
DEVELOPER Westview Development Corporation 
BOUNDARY Cherry Hills Drive to the north, Waverly Drive to the south, Bob O Link Lane to the east 

and Broadmoor Drive to the west 
ARCHITECT  
DEVELOPMENT 
HISTORY 

One of the early residential golf communities in Palm Springs, the Palm Springs Golf Club 
(a.k.a. Palm Springs Municipal Golf Course and the Tahquitz Creek Golf Resort), dates 
back to 1958 (although it was not fully realized until the 1970s). The vision for the 
$15,000,000 project included residential areas bordering the fairways of the golf course, a 
hotel and a shopping center. The 332-acre parcel along Highway 111 had been 
purchased in 1956 from Pearl McManus by the Palm Springs Capital Company (a 
holding company for the Palm Springs Turf Club) as a site for a horse-racing track.174 At 
the time it was east of the Palm Springs city limits. When the California Horse Racing 
Board refused to grant the Turf Club a license in 1957, the holding company changed 
plans and partnered with Morton B. Zuckerman, President of the Westview Development 
Corporation, to turn it into a residential golf community. Zuckerman was a noted 
residential and commercial developer from Chicago. Frank Bogert was executive vice 
president of the Westview Development Corporation. For the housing development, 
Westview turned initially to architect William M. Bray (1905-1998) for the design of 350 
units. Between 1961 and 1965,175 Westview constructed the houses along Broadmoor 
Drive, Brentwood Drive, Bob O Link Drive and Cherry Hills Drive, Menlo Circle, and 
Oswego Circle.176  

The vision for the development included the eighteen-hole championship golf course 
(1958-59, Lawrence Hughes), 240 single-family residences, plus 300 “garden cottages” 
that would feature swimming pools, and recreation and sports facilities. Owners were to 
automatically become members in the private country club.177 Ads in the Palm Springs 
Villager not only touted these amenities, they featured a green map of the course and 
integrated home sites. Increasingly, however, the development began to face financial 
difficulties and, on July 1, 1959, Westview turned over control of the course to the City 
of Palm Springs and it became a public course.178 

 

  

                                                           
174 “Land Sold for Race Track,” Los Angeles Times, January 18, 1956, 25. 
175 Pending confirmation of dates.  
176 The project team is in contact with the architect’s son, Roger Bray, to locate historic material on the plans for these houses. 
177 “Huge Development Set for Palm Springs Area,” Los Angeles Times, July 27, 1958, F8. 
178 “In Black and White,” Corona Daily Independent, April 21, 1959, 6. 
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NAME Racquet Club Road Estates Map # 57 
DATE 1958 
DEVELOPER Alexander Construction Company 
BOUNDARY Francis Drive to the north, the south side of Glen Circle and Via Escuela to the south, 

Avenida Caballeros south of Racquet Club Road, and Aurora Drive north of Racquet 
Club Road; the western boundary extends almost to Indian Canyon Drive. 

ARCHITECT Palmer & Krisel 
DEVELOPMENT 
HISTORY 

Racquet Club Road Estates (1958-61, Palmer & Krisel) was by far the largest Palm 
Springs development by the Alexanders. It was developed in six phases and was 
bordered by Francis Drive to the north, the properties fronting the south side of Glen 
Circle and Via Escuela to the south, Avenida Caballeros south of Racquet Club Road, 
and Aurora Drive north of Racquet Club Road; the western boundary extends almost to 
Indian Canyon Drive. At the outset of the project, the Alexanders constructed a storage 
warehouse on West San Rafael Drive at North Puerta del Sol (designed by Palmer & 
Krisel). The warehouse was a key factor in the success of the Alexanders’ operation: to 
avoid delays, subcontractors were required to store all construction materials there before 
construction began.  

The irregularly-shaped development (punctuated by Victoria Park and a school) was first 
developed at the northwest end, then the southeast, then the southwest, and finishing in 
the summer of 1960 to the northeast – just in time for the beginning of the 1960-61 
season. In May of 1958, the Alexanders purchased a forty-acre site from the Bureau of 
Indian Affairs “near the Racquet Cub” which may have been the portion of the 
development east of Victoria Park School.179 The design employed a series of streets and 
cul-de-sacs of 100-foot wide lots. Once again, the Alexanders turned to Palmer & Krisel 
for Mid-century Modern post-and-beam designs. In the sales brochure, they were billed 
as the “nationally famous architectural firm of Palmer & Krisel.”180 Of course, proximity 
to the legendary Racquet Club and views of the mountains were also key selling points.  

Using the super-efficient square plan, Krisel devoted the full expanse of the rear of the 
plan to living and dining space and moved the kitchen to the center of the plan. 
According to author James Harlan, two basic floor plans were used at the development 
and two additional plans were experimented with and abandoned.181 A later marketing 
brochure for the development shows a plan with a kitchen now integrated into the 
living-dining space at the rear of the plan. 

Five different rooflines (butterfly, gable, low-pitch gable, side-gable, and flat) incorporated 
a carport and breezeway, creating a series of long, low horizontal façades along the street. 
Clerestory windows captured mountain views to the west. Palmer & Krisel laid out the 
specific combinations of floor plan and roofline on each parcel to maximize privacy and 
views, and to maintain an engaging visual architectural cadence. 

                                                           
179 “Indian Land Bids Total $794,963 for 82 Acres,” Los Angeles Times, May 9, 1958, B6. 
180 Racquet Club Estates Sales Brochure, www.racquetclubestates.com (accessed January 2015). 
181 James R. Harlan, The Alexanders: A Desert Legacy, Palm Springs Preservation Foundation, 2011, 38. 
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Model homes for the development included 325 Francis Drive and 289 Racquet Club 
Road (Palmer & Krisel architects, interiors by Arthur Elrod, landscape design by Don 
Crabtree). Sales were brisk and a marketing brochure for later phases of the 
development read, “Here your neighbors will number among them world famous 
personalities in the entertainment, business and professional world – people who have 
complete freedom of choice.”182 

Racquet Club Road Estates received national attention in the architectural trade press 
with a feature in the June 1961 issue of House and Home. The development also earned 
several awards, including the National Home Builders Association Award of Merit in 
1961. 

 

  

                                                           
182 Racquet Club Road Estates Brochure, Private Collection of Donna Sherwood, www.racquetclubestates.com (accessed January 10, 2011). 
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NAME Alejo Palms Map # 58 
DATE 1959 
DEVELOPER Jack Meiselman 
BOUNDARY Amado Road to the north, Andreas Road to the south, Farrell Drive to the east, and 

Sunset Way to the west 
ARCHITECT 

DEVELOPMENT 
HISTORY 

In August of 1959, Meiselman purchased 20 acres in Section 14 from the Bureau of 
Indian Affairs and developed the area known as Alejo Palms Estates (1959, John P. “Jack” 
Moyer), a 57-parcel development boarded by Tamarisk Road on the north, Alejo Road on 
the south, Juanita Drive on the east, and the west side of Monterey Road on the west. 
These three-bedroom, two-bath plus family room designs were modeled on the successful 
Chino Palms Estates plans and were marketed for their quality construction, for being 
“worry-free,” and as the only Palm Springs housing development with concrete 
driveways.183 Model homes for the development were located at 505 Monterey Road, 
506 Monterey Road, and 584 Farrell Drive.184 506 Monterey Road contained a series of 
murals by John Morris185 that were advertised to the public to increase viewing.186 

183 Advertisement, “Ask the Man Who Owns One,” Palm Springs Life, Pictorial Issue, 1960.  
184 Advertisement, “Ask the Man Who Owns One,” Palm Springs Life, Pictorial Issue, 1960. 
185 John Morris (1920-1991) was a Palm Springs-based painter in the Impressionist style who was known as “The Picasso of Palm Springs.” 
He was an official combat artist during WWII. In 1957 he established an art center in Palm Springs. In 1967, he gave up teaching to devote 
his time to painting. His work is included in the collection of the Museum of Modern Art, the Vatican, and the Galleries Ensieme, Rome. 
186 “Alejo Palms Estates Ad,” Desert Sun, February 18, 1960. 
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NAME Caballeros Estates Map # 59 
DATE 1959 
DEVELOPER Roy Fey 
BOUNDARY Tamarisk Road on the north, Alejo Road on the south, Avenida Caballeros, to the east 

and Camino Real and Phillips Road to the west. 
ARCHITECT Wexler & Harrison 
DEVELOPMENT 
HISTORY 

Roy Fey, one of Palm Springs’ most prolific developers and builders established the 
custom-designed Caballeros Estates (1959, Wexler & Harrison). The 1959 Desert Sun ad 
for the opening of the development described “27 individually styled homes” and featured 
Wexler & Harrison by name.187 Among the speculative houses they designed for Fey in 
the Caballeros Estates tract in 1960 are 615, 681, and 755 Avenida Caballeros; and 620 
and 641 N. Camino Real.188   

187 “Caballeros Estates Ad,” Desert Sun, December 18, 1959, 4B. 
188 Lauren Weiss Bricker and Sydney Williams, Steel and Shade: The Architecture of Donald Wexler (Palm Springs Art Museum, 2011), 123. 
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NAME El Rancho Vista Estates Map # 60 
DATE 1960 
DEVELOPER Roy Fey 
BOUNDARY Vista Chino on the north, Chia Road on the south, North Gene Autry Trail on the east, 

and Avenida Fey on the west. 
ARCHITECT Wexler & Harrison 
DEVELOPMENT 
HISTORY 

In 1960 Roy Fey, one of Palm Springs’ most prolific developers and builders, looked 
eastward from the village and established the tract that would become El Rancho Vista 
Estates (1960-61, Wexler & Harrison). The “Barbara Tract” as it is officially known on the 
maps, was developed in three quick, successive phases from north to south and included 
a street named after the developer himself, Avenida Fey. The development consisted of 
92 parcels bordered by Vista Chino on the north, Chia Road on the south, North Gene 
Autry Trail on the east, and Avenida Fey on the west.189 El Rancho Vista Estates sat 
virtually isolated in the northeastern part of Palm Springs. 
 
Seeing the potential of the Alexander Construction Company’s use of modern 
architecture in housing tracts, Fey engaged the local architecture firm Wexler & Harrison 
to design homes in El Rancho Vista Estates; the subdivision was the first single-family tract 
residential development by Donald Wexler and Richard Harrison in Palm Springs.190 
Similar to the Alexander developments, the architects used a variety of rooflines 
throughout the curved streets of El Rancho Vista Estates, including gable, butterfly, and 
flat to give the neighborhood a dynamic architectural cadence. Variations in concrete 
block patterns were also used to give each house an individual look. 
 
Three basic floor plans included three-bedroom, two bath and two-bedroom, two bath 
versions plus family rooms that were priced at $16,995.191 Moreover, buyers received a 
“golfing membership in the nearby Ranch Club at no additional cost.”192 A furnished 
model home was located at 3200 East Vista Chino—likely the present-day parcel located 
at the southwest corner of Vista Chino and Via Roberto Miguel. These homes were 
marketed to Los Angeles residents as part of the “Balanced Power Homes” program by 
the Southern California Gas Company that positioned the combined use of gas and 
electric power as less expensive than “All Electric Homes” that were popular in Southern 
California during the period.193  

 

  

                                                           
189 The adjacent parcels in the tract (780 along Chia Road and the southern cul-de-sac of Avenida Fey North) were subdivided in 1979 by Canadian-
based Fairport Corporation and were not part of the original El Rancho Vista Estates. 
190 Fey, Wexler, and Harrison would continue to collaborate on projects over the years, including five speculative houses for Fey in the Caballeros 
Estates tract (1960) at 615, 681 and 755 Avenida Caballeros and 620 and 641 N. Camino Real. Fey also engaged the architects to design the 
clubhouse at Canyon Country Club (1961). 
191 “Classified Ad 15,” Los Angeles Times, April 27, 1962, D14. 
192 “Advertisement,” Desert Sun, May 7, 1960. 
193 Display Ad 312, Los Angeles Times, March 11, 1962, P15. 
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NAME Golden Vista Estates Map # 61 
DATE 1960 
DEVELOPER Alexander Construction Company 
BOUNDARY W. Lures on the north, the south side of Leisure Way on the south, Via Monte Vista to 

the east, and Rose to the west. 
ARCHITECT Palmer & Krisel 
DEVELOPMENT 
HISTORY 

In a new variant on the “resort stay to home sales” recipe, the Alexanders purchased the 
Desert Inn in 1950. In 1960, to promote their new residential venture, Golden Vista 
Estates, they erected a model home on the grounds of the Desert Inn.194 Golden Vista 
Estates (1960, Palmer & Krisel) expanded the Vista Las Palmas offerings to the south. 
Here the developers offered three floor plans: two modified versions of the Twin Palms 
plan and a larger four-bedroom, three bath plan that included a courtyard at the 
entryway.195 New roof designs included an “innovative folded plate roof and a quirky 
barrel roof.”196 A second model home for the tract was constructed at 963 Via Monte 
Vista. 

 

  

                                                           
194 According to James R. Harlan, the model home was moved in 1961 to the Corner of Anza Drive and Joshua Tree Place. 
195 James R. Harlan, The Alexanders: A Desert Legacy, Palm Springs Preservation Foundation, 2011, 32. 
196 James R. Harlan, The Alexanders: A Desert Legacy, Palm Springs Preservation Foundation, 2011, 32. 
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NAME Canyon Country Club Map # 62 
DATE 1961 
DEVELOPER Golf Club Company Sales 
BOUNDARY  
ARCHITECT  
DEVELOPMENT 
HISTORY 

The 368-parcel subdivision Canyon Country Club (1961-1965)197 was developed by the 
Golf Club Sales Company. The clubhouse (designed by Wexler & Harrison) opened on 
New Year’s Eve 1961. It is located on Agua Caliente land and cost $50 million. The 
Canyon Country Club was the culmination of efforts by Andrew Catapano and Harold 
M. Simon of the Palm Canyon Country Club, Inc. after years of complicated negotiations 
with the tribe. Ultimately, it was the largest Indian land lease in American history.198 

The Golf Club Sales Company was a subsidiary of the New York-based First National 
Realty & Construction Corporation owned by Robert Grundt. Grundt started out 
building residential developments on Long Island shortly after the war; he built the 
business to a publically held corporation and by 1963 had developed more than 4,000 
apartments in fourteen buildings in Manhattan.199 Grundt was a long-time winter resident 
of Palm Springs. In 1963, Grunt established a West Coast office in Los Angeles and 
began developing high rise apartment buildings along the Wilshire corridor in the 
Westwood neighborhood of Los Angeles, and in Phoenix, Arizona. Grunt described the 
process for Canyon Country Club: 

Our introduction to Southern California in Palm Springs was one of 
the most fascinating and challenging experiences in my career. We 
were finally successful in arranging the first utilized lease on property 
owned by the Agua Caliente Indians…it was owned by no less than 
twenty five families and it took more than a year of negotiations 
before we finally concluded all the details of the master lease—which 
was about three inches thick….200 

The custom home development was built in four phases: after the initial 168 parcels 
within the golf course were subdivided, parcels along the perimeter streets were 
subdivided annually in 1963, 1964, and 1965. To create interest in the subdivision, a 
“Plaza of Model Homes” was built, comprising the eight residences on Bonita Circle.201 
Homes in the subdivision (along Caliente Road) were designed by Stan Sackley; designs 
for the 1963 homes along Yosemite Drive are attributed to contractor A. Belden Crist.202 

Initially, due to its remote location, Canyon Country Club had a difficult time drawing 
members. However, a partnership with the Palm Springs Racquet Club helped boost its 
popularity and draw celebrities and politicians. Famous people associated with the club 
include Walt Disney, who purchased properties along the second hole of the course and 

                                                           
197 The original name of the club was “Wind Free” but it was quickly changed to Canyon Country Club. 
198 “Canyon Country Club,” Clipping File, Palm Springs Historical Society. 
199 “Reach for the Sky,” Los Angeles Times, April 21, 1963, I1. 
200 Reach for the Sky,” Los Angeles Times, April 21, 1963, I1. 
201 Canyon Country Club Estates Ad, Palm Springs Life, April 30, 1970, 14. 
202 “Canyon Country Club,” http://www.architecturalproperties.net/neighborhoods/canyon.html (accessed November 17, 2014).  
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donated a copper fountain to the club erected between the ninth and eighteenth holes. In 
1963, the course became the location for the annual Frank Sinatra Invitational golf 
tournament.203 That same year the public south course was opened. 

 

  

                                                           
203 “Remember When,” Desert Sun, November 7, 1973, no page. “Golf Classic Renamed,” Desert Sun, August 10, 1964, no page. 
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NAME Golf Club Estates Map # 63 
DATE 1961 
DEVELOPER Alexander Construction Company 
BOUNDARY North side of Par Drive to the north, the south side of Eagle Way to the south, the east 

side of Birdie Way to the east, and Bogie Road to the west. 
ARCHITECT L.C. Major and Associates 
DEVELOPMENT 
HISTORY 

In the early 1960s, the Alexanders embraced the new trend of golf course-based 
residential development. To capitalize on general proximity to the Palm Springs Golf Club 
(a.k.a. Palm Springs Municipal Golf Course and the site of present-day Tahquitz Creek 
Golf Resort), in April of 1961 the Alexanders subdivided Golf Club Estates (1963-64, L.C. 
Major and Associates). Marketed as “accessible to the greens by golf cart,” ads also refer to 
Palm Springs as “the nation’s winter golf capital.”204 

The development comprised 52 homes. Construction followed the familiar pattern of one 
three-bedroom floor plan and seven different designs for the exterior. Photographs 
indicate the plan may be the same as that used for Araby Estates. Designs for Golf Club 
Estates were modest, contemporary Ranch style, often with decorative concrete block 
fencing.205 

 

  

                                                           
204 “50 Dwellings at Spa Planned,” Los Angeles Times, May 26, 1963, O11. 
205 “50 Dwellings at Spa Planned,” Los Angeles Times, May 26, 1963, O11. 
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NAME Calcor Prefabricated Homes/Steel 
Development Houses 

Map # 64 

DATE 1961 
DEVELOPER Alexander Construction Company 
BOUNDARY  
ARCHITECT Donald Wexler 
DEVELOPMENT 
HISTORY 

In 1962, noted Palm Springs developers George and Robert Alexander made a foray into 
steel housing development. Local architect Donald Wexler approached the Alexanders 
with the idea for using the Calcor steel wall system he had been introduced to by Bernard 
Perlin, a Calcor engineer. The Alexanders decided to work with Wexler to develop seven 
parcels with forty-eight designated lots in the 1961 tract north of their Racquet Club 
subdivision with steel tract housing. As a result, the Steel Development Houses, also 
known as the Calcor Prefabricated Homes and Alexander Steel Homes, project was born 
in partnership with the Columbia-Geneva Division of U.S. Steel and Calcor (a.k.a., Rheem 
Manufacturing Company) of Huntington Park, California. The 1,400 square foot homes 
were priced at $13,000-$17,000 plus the cost of the land.206 Landscape architecture was 
by David Hamilton. 

Architecturally, the use of steel freed interior walls from being load bearing and enabled 
an open plan. A 9 x 36 foot central core contained the kitchen and bathrooms, however 
the rest of the plan was flexible. Composed primarily of steel and glass, the houses feature 
eight-foot high glass sliding doors and stationary panels and the designs are quintessentially 
Mid-century Modern in style. The houses were designed with three different rooflines (flat 
roof, raised with clerestory, and a zig-zag folded roof plate) to give the identical pre-
fabricated house development an interesting visual architectural cadence from the street. 

With the use of the Calcor system, the homes utilized a unique combination of factory 
prefabrication and on-site assembly or “a factory in the field.”207 The cores were 
prefabricated in the factory at the same time that concrete slabs were poured to a steel 
template. Non-load bearing walls came in large sections and were bolted into the concrete 
slab foundation. The result was a practical construction process that required only three 
days to complete. 

The Alexanders planned to develop 35 of the lots with steel housing.208 The first three of 
the seven model homes were started in late 1961 and opened to the public in March of 
1962;209 the remaining four houses were constructed in phase two.210 During the 
construction of the second phase, Calcor was purchased by a larger firm and the price of 
steel was raised. According to Donald Wexler, “The Alexanders wouldn’t have any of it – 
they refused to pay more…someone had to be the pioneer. They were very powerful and 

                                                           
206 Adele Cygelman, Palm Springs Modern (Rizzoli, New York: NY), 1999, 142. 
207 Journeyman Architect: The Life and Work of Donald Wexler, Jonamac Productions, 2009. 
208 Oscar Lopez, "AD Classics: Steel Pre-Fab Houses / Donald Wexler,” ArchDaily, August 20, 2011, http://www.archdaily.com/?p=155411 
(accessed December 8, 2014).  
209 Racquet Club Estates, http://www.racquetclubestates.com/Steel%20History.html (accessed January 2015). 
210 The seven houses were constructed at 290 E. Simms Road; 300 and 330 E. Molino Road; and 3100, 3125, 3133, and 3165 N. Sunny View 
Drive.  
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all the other developers were watching them to see what would happen.”211 Ultimately, 
the higher cost of steel priced them out of the market and the plans for the tract were 
derailed. 212 The Steel Development Houses were published in Architectural Record and 
named Record House of 1963. 

In 2001, the City of Palm Springs made the seven Steel Development Houses a Class 1 
Historic Site. In 2012, Steel Development House No. 2 (3125 North Sunny View Drive) 
was listed in the National Register of Historic Places. 

 

  

                                                           
211 Adele Cygelman, Palm Springs Modern (New York, NY: Rizzoli, 1999), 142. 
212 On the remaining lots in the tract, the Alexanders built Riviera Gardens (1963-64). These were more traditional wood-frame Ranch-style houses. 
The model home was located at 370 Simms Road. James R. Harlan, The Alexanders: A Desert Legacy, Palm Springs Preservation Foundation, 2011, 
42. 

App B - 222



App B - 223



 

FINAL DRAFT-FOR CITY COUNCIL APPROVAL 

City of Palm Springs  
Citywide Historic Context Statement & Survey Findings 
HISTORIC RESOURCES GROUP 

NAME New Riviera Map # 65 
DATE 1961 
DEVELOPER Alexander Construction Company 
BOUNDARY San Rafael Road to the north, Simms Road to the south, the east side of Starr Road to the 

east, Indian Canyon Way to the west 
ARCHITECT  
DEVELOPMENT 
HISTORY 

When further development of the steel houses were nixed due to increased cost, the 
Alexanders turned to selling off the rest of the subdivision with more traditional designs. 
This development, known as New Riviera Gardens (a.k.a., Riviera Gardens and Riviera 
Gardens Estates). Although the tract had been subdivided in 1961, the steel house project 
delayed construction in New Riviera Gardens until 1963-64. 

Referred to as “Sunshine Homes” in advertising, the homes were conventional ranch-style 
in design and the model was located at 370 Simms Road.213 New Riviera Gardens was 
unique among Alexander developments in that it offered a common pool and recreation 
area – the Riviera Gardens Recreation Club. Usage of the pool and cabana area were 
limited to residents of Riviera Gardens and ownership was held by all “owner 
members.”214 It featured “the nation’s first prefabricated pool house, manufactured by 
Anthony Pools, Inc., South Gate.215 The cabana, roof sections of which were constructed 
of colored fiberglass, contained a dressing room. The new amenity proved popular as 
New Riviera Gardens was sold out by July of 1965.216 

 

  

                                                           
213 Advertisement, Desert Sun, April 3, 1964, 20. 
214 Advertisement, Desert Sun, July 4, 1964, 12. 
215 Untitled Article, Desert Sun, June 19, 1964, no page. 
216 Advertisement, Desert Sun, July 23, 1965, 14. 
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NAME Las Palmas Summit Map # 66 
DATE 1962 
DEVELOPER Alexander Construction Company (Joseph C. Dunas) 
BOUNDARY North end of Los Robles Drive, Friar Court, and Capistrano Court. 
ARCHITECT Charles DuBois 
DEVELOPMENT 
HISTORY 

In October of 1962, Las Palmas Summit,217 a tract of twenty homes including the north 
end of Los Robles Drive, Friar Court, and Capistrano Court, was developed by 
Alexander partner Joseph C. Dunas (1900-1987). Advertisements for the homes 
differentiated them from other Palm Springs offerings by evoking popular culture’s 
increasing interest in Hawaii as a vacation destination: “Where island living meets desert 
living, the ‘all seasons’ home designed for year round living.” Sales agent, “Aloha-Bob 
Paine” was on hand to provide “Hawaiian Hospitality.”218 According to author James R. 
Harlan, 1211 Los Robles was likely the model home for the development.219 However, a 
1962 classified ad in the Los Angeles Times identifies the model location as 1355 Rose 
Avenue.220  

 

  

                                                           
217 Also known as Tract 2421. 
218 “Aloha Las Palmas Summit Ad,” The Alexanders: A Desert Legacy, Palm Springs Preservation Foundation, 2011, 32. 
219 James R. Harlan, The Alexanders: A Desert Legacy, Palm Springs Preservation Foundation, 2011, 34. 
221 “Display Ad,” Desert Sun, May 31, 1963. 
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NAME Desert Lanai Map # 67 
DATE c. 1963 
DEVELOPER Alexander Construction Company 
BOUNDARY Tachevah Drive to the North, Sunrise Estates to the south, Cerritos Drive to the east, and 

Sunrise Way to the west 
ARCHITECT  
DEVELOPMENT 
HISTORY 

The Alexanders also decided to try their hand at the co-op apartment market. This 
project, Desert Lanai, was developed in at least three phases. Models included a two-
bedroom, two deluxe baths and a one-bedroom plus den configuration.221 Like other co-
op communities, Desert Lanai offered buyers “maintained to perfection, whether you are 
here or not.”222 The model apartment was located at 1707 E. Tachevah Road and Sunrise 
Way. 

 

  

                                                           
221 “Display Ad,” Desert Sun, May 31, 1963. 
222 “Display Ad,“ Desert Sun, April 21, 1964 
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NAME Farrell Canyon Estates Map # 68 
DATE 1963 
DEVELOPER Alexander Construction Company 
BOUNDARY San Joaquin and San Mateo Drives, north of Sonora Road and San Mateo Circle, 

northwest of Farrell Drive. 
ARCHITECT  
DEVELOPMENT 
HISTORY 

In December 1963, following the continued eastern movement of residential 
development in Palm Springs, the Alexanders subdivided Farrell Canyon Estates (1963). 
The fifty-seven parcel development featured six elevation designs that evoked the exotic 
and international including Parisian, Mediterranean, Granada, and Tiki.223 The Parisian 
featured a distinctive mansard roof. The model home, the “Spanish Ranchero” model was 
located at 1350 S. Farrell Drive.224 

 

  

                                                           
223 “Farrell Canyon Draws Visitors from Far Away,” Los Angeles Times, May 2, 1965, I20. 
224 Advertisement, Desert Sun, May 14, 1964, 13. 
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NAME Araby Estates Map # 69 
DATE 1964 
DEVELOPER Alexander Construction Company 
BOUNDARY Sonora Road on the north, Avery Drive on the south, Beverly Drive on the east, and the 

west side of La Brea Road on the west. 
ARCHITECT  
DEVELOPMENT 
HISTORY 

Araby Estates, a small 40-parcel tract featured a wide range of Mid-century Modern 
exterior designs similar to Farrell Canyon Estates. The three-bedroom, two-bath plans 
featured lanais and enclosed, detached garages. Two model homes were located at 2996 
Avery Drive (1965) and 2988 Avery Drive (1965).225 Later, another model home was 
located at 2955 Sonora Road.226 

Ads in the Desert Sun for Araby Estates tout “The address is Palm Springs…The 
architecture is international.” Six elevations were featured: the Polynesian inspired “Bali 
Hai” and “Tiki” models, the mansard-roofed “Parisian,” the Ranch style “Casa Grande,” the 
Spanish arched façade of the “Granada.” and the columned “Mediterranean.” Featured 
amenities included a “circulating floor-plan,” open living rooms with sliding glass doors in 
every direction, luxurious master suites with Roman tubs, underground utilities, and air 
conditioning.”227  

 

  

                                                           
225 “Display Ad 28,” Los Angeles Times, May 29, 1965, B3. 
226 Araby Estates Classified Ad, Desert Sun, October 7, 1965, 15. 
227 Araby Estates Classified Ad, Desert Sun, October 7, 1965, 15. 
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NAME Green Fairway Estates Map # 70 
DATE 1964 
DEVELOPER Alexander Construction Company 
BOUNDARY Easternmost streets of the Palm Springs Golf Club subdivision: Pebble Beach Drive and 

Lakeside Drive. 
ARCHITECT Wexler & Harrison 
DEVELOPMENT 
HISTORY 

In early 1964, Robert and George Alexander subdivided the easternmost streets of the 
Palm Springs Golf Club subdivision: Pebble Beach Drive and Lakeside Drive.228 Their 
development consisted of 55 parcels that they named “Green Fairway Estates.” In 
marketing materials and advertising, the Alexanders turned the lack of exclusivity 
associated with being on a public (vs. private) golf course into a selling point: “because it is 
a municipal course, there are no membership charges – only low green fees when you 
play.”229 Other selling points included “golf-course living…with a golf course as your 
backyard,” a “bi-functional floor plan” with “quiet areas separated from active living area,” 
and oversized garages to accommodate an electric golf cart.230 

For the design of these homes, the Alexanders worked with Wexler & Harrison, who 
designed a three-bedroom and a four-bedroom plan along with nine different exterior 
designs. In plan, the designs are identical and divided into two distinct pavilions: one 
public and one private linked by a central entry. The four-bedroom plan includes the 
simple addition of another bedroom and bathroom completing the square of the public 
pavilion.  

Six of the nine exterior designs reflect a simple Mid-Century Modern style (Gleneagles, St. 
Cloud, Wentworth, Hague, Maracaibo, and St. Andrews plans); there were three more 
“exotic” designs that evoke resort destinations (the Hawaiian-influenced Belhi and Royal 
Singapore models, as well as the eclectic Southwestern/Tunisian style Capilano). With 
such a high ratio of designs to developed units (6:1), the streets of Green Fairway Estates 
resembled a custom home development instead of a standardized tract. According to 
Wexler, it was his architectural partner Richard Harrison who “provided the tropical 
touch.”231 The designs also prominently feature stone masonry accents. 

 

  

                                                           
228 Green Fairway Estates was one of the last subdivisions built by the Alexanders before their tragic death in a plane crash in November of 1964. 
229 “Display Ad 18,” Los Angeles Times, November 13, 1965, I9. 
230 “Green Fairways Estates Sales Brochure,” Private Collection.  
231 Jack Levitan, “Green Fairway Estates,” www.eichlernetwork.com/green-fairway-estates-palm-springs (accessed November 19, 2014). 
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NAME Seven Lakes Country Club Map # 71 
DATE 1964 
DEVELOPER Johnny Dawson 
BOUNDARY 4100 E. Seven Lakes Drive 
ARCHITECT Richard Harrison 
DEVELOPMENT 
HISTORY 

One of the most distinguished residential golf communities in the city of Palm Springs was 
Seven Lakes Country Club Estates (1964, Richard Harrison) at 4100 E. Seven Lakes 
Drive. A Johnny Dawson-owned and built venture, this self-contained, multi-million dollar 
development consisted of 400 condominium units on 120 acres built around an 18-hole 
course. The attached buildings are Mid-century Modern in style; they are low profile, 
rectilinear, flat-roofed buildings placed at angles throughout the course to capture views of 
putting greens, mountains, and the course’s namesake seven lakes. The units were 
available in one-bedroom and two-bedroom models. Images of Velma Dawson’s 
residence (interior designer, artist, creator of Howdy Doody and wife of the developer 
Johnny Dawson) were published in House Beautiful. Seven Lakes Country Club Estates 
also contained a clubhouse (1965, William F. Cody), restaurant, and a swimming pool 
and sauna for each group of condominiums. 
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NAME Smoke Canyon Estates Map # 72 
DATE 1964 
DEVELOPER R.M. Myer and Victor Koozin 
BOUNDARY Caliente Drive to the north, the southern side of Madrona Drive to the south, Cadiz 

Circle to the east, and Canyon Country Club to the south. It also included the east and 
west sides of Toledo Avenue to the south, Sierra Way to Madrona and is inclusive of  
Chico Drive, Tulare Drive, Lobo Way, Maricopa Drive, Bolero Circle, Concha Circle, 
Cabildo Circle, Toledo Circle, Cadiz Circle and Ledo Circle. 

ARCHITECT  
DEVELOPMENT 
HISTORY 

Smoke Canyon Estates (Tract 2812 and Tract 3137) was subdivided in 1964 by two San 
Fernando Valley-based developers, R. M. Myer and Victor T. Koozin. Tract 2812, 
subdivided and developed first, was a 55-parcel tract. The 100-parcel Tract 3137 was 
subdivided in early 1965. As described by the developers, the area was “transformed into 
a lush and beautiful landscape” through the planting of 2,200 palm trees, 4,500 specimen 
olive trees, and hundreds of shrubs and flowers.232 The neighborhoods were also 
populated with large desert boulders and Colorado River stone to simulate dry riverbeds 
on front lawns.  

Smoke Canyon Estates consisted of five four-bedroom, three bathroom floor plans and 22 
elevations with a variety of rooflines including flat, gabled, and shed. The high number of 
elevations for the 155-unit development contributed to neighborhood’s appearance as 
custom homes. Home features included a step-down wet-bar, outdoor built-in barbecue, 
Roman tub in master bath and private, and enclosed front patios. In 1965, the sales office 
was located at 1449 Madrona Drive. By 1965, it was located at 1911 Cadiz Circle. 

R. “Mike” Myers (1914-2007) and Victor T. Koozin (b. 1914) were active real estate 
developers in the Encino area of the San Fernando Valley during the early 1960s.233 
Projects included the rezoning and development of seven acres of Ventura Boulevard near 
Louise Avenue as well as the development of a professional building. Myers’ residential 
development activities included apartment houses in Los Angeles. Myers and Koozin were 
both active in the Encino Chamber of Commerce, with Myers serving as its president in 
1962. Koozin, the son of Russian immigrants, came to America in 1923 and settled in 
Seattle, Washington. In 1940, he relocated to Los Angeles as an aircraft engineer.234  

 

  

                                                           
232 “Palm Springs Tract ‘Transforms” Desert,” Los Angeles Times, June 26, 1966, L19. 
233 The development of TR2812 was handled under the corporate name of Sunrise Estates, Inc., of which Myers and Koozin were president and 
secretary, respectively. This is not to be confused with the Sunrise Estates development marketed as such by the Alexander Construction Company 
farther to the north in Palm Springs. 
234 U.S. Census, 1940. 
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NAME Sunrise Estates Map # 73 
DATE 1964 
DEVELOPER Alexander Construction Company 
BOUNDARY Cul-de-sacs at Buttonwillow Circle and Cibola Circle, with six homes on Biskra Road and 

three on Cerritos (Tract 2809). 
ARCHITECT  
DEVELOPMENT 
HISTORY 

In 1964, the Alexanders developed Sunrise Estates, a 21-parcel development that 
included the cul-de-sacs at Buttonwillow Circle and Cibola Circle, with six homes on 
Biskra Road and three on Cerritos (Tract 2809). At $19,900, homes in Sunrise Estates 
were at a lower price point than other Alexander Homes available during this period. The 
designs are based on the same floor plans as the Golf Club Estates homes.235 After the 
plane crash that killed the father and son development team, the brother of Robert 
Alexander’s wife Helene, Sheldon L. Appel (1931-1999), oversaw the company’s projects 
in progress.  

 

  

                                                           
235 James R. Harlan, The Alexanders: A Desert Legacy, Palm Springs Preservation Foundation, 2011, 52. 
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NAME Southridge Estates Map # 74 
DATE 1965 
DEVELOPER E. Allan Petty, Richard E. Rahn, William Anable 
BOUNDARY Southridge Drive, just south of E Palm Canyon Drive 
ARCHITECT  
DEVELOPMENT 
HISTORY 

During the 1960s, Southern California residential development turned to the hillsides. As 
flat, convenient parcels became scarcer and engineering advances made hillside 
development more feasible and economical, developers increasingly looked to the hills for 
property. The views associated with hillside properties also made these sites more 
desirable for homebuilders and buyers. Southridge Estates capitalized on these trends to 
create an exclusive neighborhood for an elite group of Palm Springs residences. On land 
sold to them by realtor Russell Wade, developers E. Allan Petty, Richard E. Rahn, and 
William Anable established the twenty-two parcel tract (Tract 2928) in January of 1965. A 
burgeoning Palm Springs population had made the traditional privacy afforded the 
wealthy and famous residents of Palm Springs harder to manage. As a result, the guard-
gated Southridge Estates appealed to those residents seeking maximum privacy. 

Advertisements for the community, which appeared exclusively in local media like the 
Palm Springs Villager, touted the “view of Palm Springs and the Coachella Valley 
unequaled anywhere in the desert…underground utilities, A-1 engineering of the streets 
and lots and proper deed restrictions.”236 The first home constructed in Southridge was 
the Max Stoffel Residence (1961-62, Ross Patton and Duke Wild). According to the 
Desert Sun, Patton and Wild, general contractors, were “appointed by owners Richard 
Rahm, Alan Petty and William Anable to design and build Southridge Homes.”237 

 

  

                                                           
236 Ad for Southridge, Palm Springs Life, December 14, 1960. 
237 “Untitled,” Desert Sun, November 3, 1961, no page.   
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NAME Orchid Tree Lane Map # 75 
DATE 1966 
DEVELOPER Howard P. Lapham 
BOUNDARY Orchid Tree Lane between Alejo Road and Amado Road 
ARCHITECT  
DEVELOPMENT 
HISTORY 

In 1966 noted local designer Howard P. Lapham (1905-2008) subdivided a single street 
of single-family residences on Orchid Tree Lane between Alejo Road and Amado 
Road.238 Orchid Tree Lane Estates consisted of 22 parcels of three- and four-bedroom, 
two- and three-bathroom plans with family room.239 These “All-Electric Homes” were 
marketed as part of Southern California Edison’s initiative to encourage electricity-driven 
living during the 1960s and featured in their advertising in 1967-68. Orchid Tree Lane 
Estates homes featured all-electric kitchens and air conditioning.  

The exact number of original elevation designs is currently unknown, however, the homes 
were marketed in ads as “individually styled.”240 The Mid-Century Modern, post-and-beam 
model home – the “Patio Home” – was located at 314 Orchid Tree Lane. 

 

  

                                                           
238 Pending additional research to confirm whether Lapham also provided the designs for the residences in the subdivision, and whether they were 
custom or tract homes. 
239 “Southern California Edison Ad,” Redlands Daily Facts, December 29, 1967, 7. 
240 Advertisement, Desert Sun, January 19, 1967. 
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NAME Canyon Estates Map # 76 
DATE 1969 
DEVELOPER Roy Fey 
BOUNDARY Sierra Way to the north, Via Estrella to the south, Toledo Avenue to the east, and 

Caliente Drive to the west. 
ARCHITECT Charles E. DuBois 
DEVELOPMENT 
HISTORY 

Noted Palm Springs developer Roy Fey capitalized on the trend of residential golf course 
communities with Canyon Estates (1969-1972, Charles E. DuBois). The $21 million joint 
venture included the Wallace Moir Group, Roy Fey Construction Co., and the Great-West 
Life Assurance Company of Canada.241 The development included the construction of a 9-
hole, 3-par executive golf course (designed by Frank Hughes), tennis courts, clubhouse, 
eleven swimming and therapeutic pools, and landscaped medians. Residential options 
included attached condominium units on the fairway as well as off-course lots for custom 
homes.242  

The 173 condominium units consisted of attached, semi-attached, and stand-alone units. 
Designs included a two-bedroom, two bath and a three-bedroom, two bath model with a 
choice of six floor plans. They were developed in six units from the southern portion of the 
development northward.243 The units are attached at the carport for maximum privacy. 
Two basic exterior designs dominate the development with variations in stone and 
masonry to differentiate one design from the other. Five masonry types are featured: lava 
stone, grey flagstone, a cream-colored flagstone, large slump brick, and brick. These 
treatments reflected the development’s four exterior styles: Spanish, Polynesian, 
Contemporary and Desert Contemporary.244 Each design featured a raised flat-roofed or 
gabled clerestory window section that provided interior light, views to the mountains and 
an interesting visual cadence to the neighborhood. Model homes for Canyon Estates were 
located on the south side of Canyon Estates Drive at the entrance to the development.245 

As part of Canyon Estates, Fey also offered a limited number of “executive homes.” 
Although not directly adjacent to the fairways, these thee-, four-, or five-bedroom single-
family residences offered all the amenities of Canyon Estates membership with walled lots 
for added privacy. These homes were on land directly adjacent to the Canyon Estates 
Condominiums to the north and east (Tracts 3137 and 2812). Two models for this part of 
the development still stand at 1937 Toledo Avenue (1970) and 1596 Canyon Estates 
Drive (1974).246 The concept of the executive home merges condominium-style amenities 
with the single-family residence. The owner enjoyed all the advantages of condominium 
ownership including exterior maintenance and upkeep for the structure as well as the use 
of the nearby clubhouse, gymnasium, golf course, and tennis courts for payment of a 
monthly fee.  

                                                           
241 “Moir Group Record Set During 1969,” Los Angeles Times, April 12, 1970. 
242 Ad for Roy Fey’s Canyon Estates, undated, www.pscanyonestates.com/history/ (accessed November 2014).  
243 The number of units is inconsistent with newspaper information that suggests that by June of 1975, 246 of the constructed 254 condominiums 
had been purchased. 
244 “New Residential Complex in Palm Springs,” The Desert Sun, April 30, 1970, 14. 
245 Canyon Estates Ad, Palm Springs Life, December 1969, 30. 
246 The architect(s) of these residences is unknown at this time. 
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In 1975, Fey expanded the development of his executive homes even further to include 
26 homes in the area north of Laverne Way as Canyon Vista Estates (Tract 6839). The 
model home featured in advertising still stands at 1642 La Verne Way (1976).247 

 

                                                           
247 Architect unknown at this time. 
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1. Vista Acres
2. Las Hacienditas
3. Tahquitz Park Tracts #1 and #2 (Tennis Club Neighborhood)
4. Palm Canyon Mesa
5. Araby Tract
6. Merito Vista
7. Las Palmas Estates
8. Palm Springs Estates
9. Vista Santa Rosa
10. Palos Verdes Tract
11. Smoke Tree Ranch
12. Indian Trail Tract
13. La Rambla
14. Chino Canyon Mesa
15. Desert Sands
16. El Mirador Estates
17. Vista del Monte
18. Racquet Club Colony
19. Little Tuscany
20. Palm Highlands Tract
21. Palm Springs Desert Estates
22. Palm Springs Village
23. Ramon Tract
24. Palm Springs Palisades (Part of the Tennis Club Neighborhood)
25. Warm Sands
26. Chino Mesa Estates
27. Warm Sands Park
28. Desert Palms Estates
29. Desert Tract
30. El Mirador Park
31. Luring Sands Park
32. Palm Springs Estates (Spaulding)
33. San Jacinto Estates
34. Vista Del Cielo
35. Tahquitz River Estates
36. Val Vista
37. Venable Tract
38. Lilliana Gardens
39. Bel Vista Tract
40. Deep Well Ranch Estates
41. Palm Vista Estates
42. Ranch Club Estates/Desert Park Estates
43. Sunmor Estates
44. Twin Palms Estates
45. Crossley Tract
46. El Camino Estates
47. Karlisa Cove
48. Palm Lane
49. Mountain View Estates
50. Ramon Rise Estates
51. Vista Las Palmas
52. Burton Tract
53. Enchanted Homes
54. Janis’ Hilltop Estates
55. Chino Palms Estates
56. Palm Springs Golf Club
57. Racquet Club Road Estates
58. Alejo Palms
59. Caballeros Estates
60. El Rancho Vista Estates
61. Golden Vista Estates
62. Canyon Country Club
63. Golf Club Estates
64. Calcor Prefabricated Homes/Steel Development Houses
65. New Riviera
66. Las Palmas Summit
67. Desert Lanai
68. Farrell Canyon Estates
69. Araby Estates
70. Green Fairway Estates
71. Seven Lakes Country Club
72. Smoke Canyon Estates
73. Sunrise Estates
74. Southridge Estates
75. Orchid Tree Lane
76. Canyon Estates
77. Sun View Estates± HISTORIC RESOURCES GROUP

*Map numbers correspond to the Overview  of Tract Development
section of the Historic Context Statement (Appendix B)

OVERVIEW OF TRACT DEVELOPMENT


	06_App B - Tract Development
	By 1940, the tract was marketed as a “residential and residential-income subdivision” with new selling agents. This push appears to have been only marginally successful in that the Palm Springs City Directory for 1946-47 shows only seventeen residents within the tract (most of whom are local to Palm Springs and not seasonal visitors). However, six homes are listed as “under construction,” many of which were located on Avenida Ortega. A late 1940s real estate ad for the tract indicates the ongoing struggle with the availability of an “entire block in the Palm Highlands Tract zoned for bungalow courts. Room for over thirty units. Worth over $25,000. Will take $16,500 for quick sale.” Homes in Palm Highlands tend to be modest period revival or minimal traditional houses.
	In addition to entry-level homes for GIs, developers also rapidly began extending the city’s offerings of custom home developments in the immediate postwar era. In 1946, two enterprising postwar investors subdivided Desert Palms Estates, a 122-parcel development of custom homes. Paul B. Belding (1912-1968), head of an airplane parts manufacturing company during World War II, and his partner, prominent Los Angeles attorney Russell D. Garner (1904-1993) shaped the tract by taking a page from the book of Prescott T. Stevens. The development, a series of gently curving streets, was entered via Desert Palms Drive. Belding and Garner established sales office in Los Angeles to lure people in the market for second homes. Desert Palms Estates was unusual in that it required that “building plans must be approved by architectural committee.”
	During this period, developers keen on selling vacation homes often created a symbiotic relationship between the mountain and desert communities. E.E. Spaulding, of the Spaulding Development Corporation subdivided Spaulding’s Palm Springs Estates (1946-49). Developed in two phases, the first unit included 103 parcels, the second an additional forty-five lots. Spaulding operated as a real estate broker in the Lake Arrowhead area as far back as the 1920s.
	San Jacinto Estates (1946) featured curving streets with a prominent entrance. Located southeast of present-day Tahquitz Road (previously McCallum Way) and Sunrise Way, the 77-parcel subdivision was developed by Elliot M. Bank and attorney Harold H. Licker of New Jersey. However, the venture appears to have been less than successful as ads appear in the Los Angeles Times in 1949 for parcels at “liquidation pricing.”
	Smoke Canyon Estates (Tract 2812 and Tract 3137) was subdivided in 1964 by two San Fernando Valley-based developers, R. M. Myer and Victor T. Koozin. Tract 2812, subdivided and developed first, was a 55-parcel tract. The 100-parcel Tract 3137 was subdivided in early 1965. As described by the developers, the area was “transformed into a lush and beautiful landscape” through the planting of 2,200 palm trees, 4,500 specimen olive trees, and hundreds of shrubs and flowers. The neighborhoods were also populated with large desert boulders and Colorado River stone to simulate dry riverbeds on front lawns. 
	R. “Mike” Myers (1914-2007) and Victor T. Koozin (b. 1914) were active real estate developers in the Encino area of the San Fernando Valley during the early 1960s. Projects included the rezoning and development of seven acres of Ventura Boulevard near Louise Avenue as well as the development of a professional building. Myers’ residential development activities included apartment houses in Los Angeles. Myers and Koozin were both active in the Encino Chamber of Commerce, with Myers serving as its president in 1962. Koozin, the son of Russian immigrants, came to America in 1923 and settled in Seattle, Washington. In 1940, he relocated to Los Angeles as an aircraft engineer. 
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